# 

Working to make your life simple



## **USERS MANUAL**

## DME-LAN-002 Master control module





www.domestia.be



## CONTENTS

1		DESCRIPTION	4
2		ELECTRICAL CONNECTION OF THE DME-LAN-002	5
3		NETWORK CONNECTION	8
	3.1	Configuration of the IP address	8
	3.2	Creation of a network	9
	3.3	Wi-Fi router	10
4		LAUNCHING THE INSTALLER APPLICATION	11
	4.1	Launch	11
	4.2	Choice of installer language	12
	4.3	Enter your installer details	12
	4.4	Details of the installation	13
	4.5	Reading the content of the DME-LAN-002	14
	4.6	Installation composition	14
	4.7	Configuring the slave cards	16
	4.8	Configuring the output names	18
	4.9	Configuration of the group	19
	4.10	Configuring areas	23
	4.11	Configuring temperature sensors	23
	4.12	Saving the configuration in the DME-LAN	25
	4.13	X.X Bus DMX 512	26
5		PROGRAMMING THE PUSHBUTTONS	27
	5.1	Programming outputs	27
	5.2	Programming groups	27
6		USER INTERFACE (LOCAL)	28
	6.1	«Home» menu	29
	6.2	«Temperature» menu	29
	6.3	«Events» menu	30
	6.4	«Parameters» menu	33
7		USER INTERFACE: HOME ON WEB	34
8		TROUBLESHOOTING	37
9		WARRANTIES	38

## 1. DESCRIPTION

## The DME-LAN-002 is a comprehensive system that integrates the following elements (see Figure A on page 4) :

- Ethernet port (RJ45)
- RS485 communication port (A, B and GND)
- Bus line for identification modules DMI-006-001, DMI-004-001 or DMI-LED-004 (Line
- 1, Line 2, Line 3 and Line 4)
- Bus line for temperature sensors
- 230VAC power input

## The DME-LAN-002 allows the following elements on its home-automation system, which will be configured as «slaves» :

- Lighting-management cards (DMC-012-002, DMC-012-016)
- Shutter-control cards (DMCV-006-002)
- 4-output extension modules (DML-004-002, DMA-004-003, DMT-004-003, DMD-004-001
- DMC-004-003 or DMCV-002-003). Please refer to the relevant instruction manuals for more information.
- Collection of information from the temperature sensor(s) (DMCT-001-001)

The Home Manager application is available for free from the Android, Apple and Windows stores.

It loads web pages that the user can open with any Internet browser (Safari, Chrome, Firefox, Internet Explorer, Opera, etc.).

If it is connected to the Internet via its Ethernet port (RJ45), the remote server («Home on Web») allows:

- remote management.
- firmware updates (version of the card's software).
- saving of installation data.
- enrichment of the graphic interface.
- synchronisation of the system's internal clock (automatic switching to summer/ winter time), based on international atomic time.

The DME-LAN-002 has 4 input buses and can manage up to 240 commands<sup>1</sup> via identification modules (DMI-006-001, DMI-LED-006) that are distributed over the 4 buses. We recommend one bus per level, in order to make the installation process easier.

1 Sixty commands are available per bus. This includes unique lighting or shutter/blinds commands (point by point + groups, scenarios).



There are LED indicators (one blue LED and one red LED) next to the line connectors. The blue LED lights up when the pushbutton (PB) for the line is pressed; the red LED lights up when there is a short circuit on the latter.

## 2. ELECTRICAL CONNECTION

The DME-LAN-002 card is powered directly by the 230 VAC mains. The input voltage range is 100–240 VAC and 50–60 Hz.

From the DME-LAN-002 card, the identification modules are connected via two wires.

There is no polarity to consider. They can be wired either:

- by bus.
- in a star or triangle configuration.
- both, simultaneously.

## Figure A below shows the DME-LAN-002 with the connection principle for the different outputs:

- Slave cards can be connected to the DME-LAN-002, via the RS485 bus to terminals 6(A), 7(B), 8(GND) (RS485 Slave). In order to do this, use the UTP cable (recommended), the VVT cable or the VOB cable, etc. To create a link between remote cards in different boxes, it is best to use a UTP cable, with a pair for terminal 6(A) and 7(B) and a pair for terminal 8 (GND).
- Terminals 1, 2 and 3 (**RJ45**) make it possible to connect the DME-LAN-002 card to the Ethernet network directly to a DET-005-002 touch screen, or via a network switch to allow the DET-005-002 touch screen, smartphone or tablet to access the home-automation system. Use a UTP Cat5e cable (minimum).
- The DMCT-001-001 temperature sensors are connected to terminals 27–31 («**RS485 Captor**» and «**16V Captor**». The power supply for the latter is provided by the DME-LAN-002). Use a UTP cable (recommended), a VVT cable or a VOB cable, etc.
- As explained in chapter 2, the identification modules are connected on the «Line» inputs. Each «Line» input can be used to program a maximum of 60 different functions. It is preferable to divide the modules into several circuits over 4 lines. Wiring the identification modules: Two non-polarised wires (UTP, VVT, XVB, VOB, etc). (Be careful of the quality of the connection: the cross-section of the identification module wires is 0.6mm<sup>2</sup>).
- The 230 VAC power supply is connected to terminals 24(L) and 26(N)







7

Example of the connection for identification modules (see the instruction manual for the DMI-LED-004 identification modules)



## **3. NETWORK CONNECTION**

## **3.1. CONFIGURATION OF THE IP ADDRESS**

When you switch the DME-LAN on, if it is connected to a modem or router, it will automatically adapt its IP address to be compatible with the network used (if it is not connected to a router, it will be configured to IP address 192.168.1.210).



For example:

- For Proximus modems, it will receive the following kind of address: 192.168.1.210).
- For Voo or Telenet modems, it will automatically change to the IP address 192.168.0.210.

However, it is possible to configure the network parameters of the DME-LAN manually, via the address http://192.168.1.210.

## **3.2.CREATION OF A NETWORK**

No Internet connection is required to configure the DME-LAN. However, you must connect it directly to your PC via a wired network (in this case, the PC's IP address must be configured manually) or via a Wi-Fi router (for example, a DRW-001-001-type router – see point 3.3).



Below: the local page configuration parameters for the DME-LAN-002



## 3.3. DRW-001-001 WI-FI ROUTER

The «DRW-001-001» module is a pocket Wi-Fi router. It is specially configured to be connected directly to our supplementary management unit (DME-LAN-002) and can be programmed for Wi-Fi before having Internet access.

Ultra compact and equipped with a mini USB port, this router can also be powered using a laptop, an AC adapter or a Power Bank (1A)

Connecting your DME-LAN-002 to the DRW-001-001 router :

- Connect as indicated in the diagram below.
- Check that the switch is set to «3G/4G» mode.
- Connect your device (tablet/phone/computer) to the network indicated on the router label via Wi-Fi (SSID: «TP-LINK\_...»).
- Enter the password indicated on the router label. (Key: «\*\*\*\*\*»).
- Launch Home Manager and click on the magnifying glass in the settings to check for the presence of the management unit (DME-LAN-002) on the network.
- The drop-down list displays the DME-LAN available (connected to the network).
- If you are unable to connect, check your connection by going to your management unit's local page (DME-LAN-002) from your web browser (IP address: 192.168.1.210 or 192.168.0.210).
  - » If the page opens, you can close it, then launch Home Manager again.
  - » Otherwise, check that you are connected to the Wi-Fi «TP-LINK\_...» and restart your management unit (DME-LAN-002) using the small white button on the side of the ABGND «RS485 Slave» terminal; one of the two devices is probably not connected properly.





10

## 4. LAUNCHING THE INSTALLER APPLICATION

#### 4.1. LAUNCH

Download Home Manager in advance from Apple, iOS, Android or from the downloads page of our website www.domestia.be.

• Then click on the «Home Manager» icon » > to access these home screens





## 4.2. CHOICE OF INSTALLER LANGUAGE

Click on Language/Installer (bulb icon).

Then click on the corresponding flag to choose your language.



## **4.3. ENTER YOUR INSTALLER DETAILS**

DOMES		
	First name :	
	Company :	Domestia
	VAT :	BE000000000
	Street and No°:	Jean Jaurès 176 🔹 🛛 🔤
	Zip code :	4430
	City :	Ans S S S
	Country :	Belgium
	Phone :	
	Email :	
	Туре :	Design office

Once your data has been validated, you will return to the home screen by clicking on the (V) icon.



## 4.4. DETAILS OF THE INSTALLATION

Click on **New** (thermometer icon). Fill in the details of the installation.

DOMESTIA	Details of the installation
Name :	
Street and No°:	
City :	
IP Adress :	192.168.1.191
Command port :	52 000
Listening port :	55 001
Reset	Validate Return

\* A magnifying glass icon allows you to configure the IP address automatically. If you see a «No DME-LAN connected» message, refer to **point 3.1**.

DOMESTIA	Details of the installation	
Name :	xxxx	
Street and No°:	main street	
City :	London	
IP Adress :	192.168.1.210	
Command port :	52 000	
Listening port :	55 001	
Reset	Validate Return	

#### Please refer to point 3.1 to change the IP address of the DME-LAN-002.

Save the details by clicking on the floppy disk. Confirm that you want to connect to the DME-LAN.

Name :	xxxx
Street and No°:	Main street
City :	London
IP Adress :	192. Do you wunt to connect to the Direct and
Command port :	
Listening port :	55 001
Reset	Validate Return

If the connection with the DME-LAN-002 is possible (tablet/computer/smartphone and DME-LAN-002 is connected via a network and the IP parameters are compatible), you will be able to access the installation composition.

## 4.5. READING THE CONTENT OF THE DME-LAN-002

Click on DME-LAN connection (the solar panel icon).

If the connection with the DME-LAN-002 is possible (tablet/computer/smartphone and DME-LAN-002 is connected via a network and the IP parameters are compatible), the application will read the content of the DME-LAN-002.

Reading the con	inguration
95 %	
Reading zones	
IP Adress DME-LAN: 192.168.1.218	
Firmware version : 2.71 T	

## 4.6. INSTALLATION COMPOSITION

This screen is used to define the cards installed. The cards appear in the order in which they are added. The table on the right shows the list of cards and the address to be configured on each card. For cards with 12 outputs, the graphic shows the LEDs that must



be lit when configuring the card's address. For cards with 4 outputs, the graphic indicates the numbering to be applied to the encoding wheels.

	Composition	-	Туре	Addresses	Encoded wheel	
	DMC-012	0				
	DMC-004	0				
	DMT-004	0				
$\bigcirc$	DML-004	0				
	DMD-004	0				4
	DMCV-006	0				
		0				

Add the type and exact number of cards that are included in your installation.

		Comp	osition		$\sim$	Ту	pe	Addre	sses	F	ncoded wheel
				. (		DI	MC-012	1	-> 12		
$(\mathbf{X})$	)		DMC-012	_	1	DI	MA-004	13	3 -> 16		01
$\sim$			DMA-004	_	1 -	D	ML-004	17	7 -> 20		02
	)	Ŧ	DMT-004	-	0	DI	MC-004	21	-> 24		03
		Ť	DML-004		1	DM	ICV-006	25	5 -> 36		
	)	( + )	DMD-004		0						
		(+)	DMCV-006		1						
		()	DMCV-002		0						
										7	
		Ad	d/Delete gr	oupe		Num		Name	Family	Туре	
	Ì	Ad	ld all			2	Hall		$\bigcirc$		
	1	Kitchen			$\bigcirc$	• 4	Bathroo	m	$\bigcirc$	X	
	3	Living			$\bigcirc$	5	Toilet		$\bigcirc$		
	13	Strip led			0	6	Russ be	droom	$\bigcirc$	X	
	17	Living dim	imer		R	•7	Bryan be	edroom	$\bigcirc$	X	
						•	10.1.1		(		

Confirm the composition of your installation by clicking on the (V) icon on the left of the screen.

#### Careful: do not forget to configure the cards! (See below)

## 4.7. CONFIGURING THE SLAVE CARDS

For cards with 12 outputs (DKS-012-002, DKS-012-016, DMC-012-002, DMC-012-016) :

When you turn a card on, you have a few seconds to press the button at the bottom to light the BCE LEDs. If you did not manage to do this in time, cut the power to the card and repeat the action.



By this stage, you have configured the card as a slave to the DME-LAN-002. All that remains is to establish the address of the card, based on the instructions provided by Home Manager. To do this, you must move to the left or right, depending on the LEDs.

For each card, press the buttons on the left and right until the LEDs light, in accordance with what is shown in the diagram. In the example above, which pertains to the DMCV-006-xx card, press the button on the right until only LED 3 is lit (**see figure 2, page 11**).





When the BCE LEDs and LED 3 for the DMCV-006 card are lit, you have configured your card as a slave to the DME-LAN-002 and the correct address.



You can press the central button to validate and your card will switch into «RUN» mode (LED: AE)

For extensions with 4 outputs (DMC-004-003, DMA-004-003, DML-004-002, DMD-004-00): Simply turn the encoding wheels to obtain the code desired (see figure 2, page 11). A help window will appear once you have validated the installation's composition.



#### Then press stop/help.

You can now start configuring the names of the outputs.

## 4.8. CONFIGURING THE OUTPUTS



To configure an output, just click on its name. A window will open, allowing the name to be configured. You can enter a maximum of 20 characters (including spaces), its type and a possible timer. You can also test the output by clicking on the bulb icon.



	2				Re	elay cor	nfigura	tion		
		Outp	ut nam	e: <mark>Ha</mark>	I					
<b>&gt;</b>	emote							$\bigcirc$		
🚺 lr	npulse							V		
т	imer M	ode Ol	N/OFF							
G										8
а	z	e	r	ť	у	u '	i '	0	р	(5)
q	s	d	f	g	h	j	k	1	m	0
¢	w	x	с	v	b	n		1	?	٥
7123		0						٥		?123

#### The outputs can be configured in 5 different modes :

Stepping switch: Normal operating mode. Pressing on the button reverses the status of the relays.

Push: The relay is active while the button is pressed and inactive when the button is released.

Shut-off timer: Pressing on the button activates the relay. The relay is automatically deactivated after the configured time. If the button is pressed when the relay is still active, then the relay is deactivated. A long press activates the relay for the maximum possible time (16 hours).

Continuous mode: Each press of the button activates the output for the time configured. A long press activates the relay for the maximum possible time (16 hours).

Heating control: The relay is controlled by the associated temperature sensor.

## 4.9. CONFIGURATION OF THE GROUPS

Click on the icon



The DME-LAN-002 can be used to create up to 60 groups.

To create one or more groups, click on the (+) icon and enter the name of the group by clicking into the name field (see figures 1 and 2 on page 15).

	Configuration of the groups	
1	All on	$\bigcirc$
2	All off	$\bigcirc$
3	Shutters down	
4	Shutters up	
5	TV	1
6		









#### **⊙** ■ 1 «Toggle» or stepping switch group

This group is used to turn lighting outputs on or off and to vary the brightness (dimmer). A short press on the button reverses the status of the outputs. A long press activates the outputs and, in the case of dimmers, varies the brightness.

#### O 2 «Switch all on» group

This group is used to light all the lighting outputs. A short or long press on the button activates the outputs

#### ⊙ ■ 3 »Switch all off» group

This group is used to extinguish all the lighting outputs. A short press deactivates all the outputs selected.

A long press deactivates the outputs after 30 seconds.

#### 

This group is used to activate the «close shutters» outputs. A short press activates the outputs for the closure time that has been configured for these outputs. A long press activates the outputs while the button is pressed.

#### • **5** «Open all» group

This group is used to activate the «open shutters» outputs. A short press activates the outputs for the opening time that has been configured for these outputs. A long press activates the outputs while the button is pressed.

#### ⊙ ■ 6 «Scenario» group

This group is used to define the status of all the lighting or shutter outputs (active, inactive or brightness for the dimmers).

#### O 7»Simulation» group

This group of lighting outputs is used to simulate a presence. The group must operate with a switch (contact maintained) and also be activated by an event. When the switch is active and an event activates the «Simulation», then the group's outputs are lit one after another in a random order and for a random period of time (between 1 and 60 minutes).

Then select the outputs that must be part of the group.

An output can be added by clicking on the list on the right. It can be deleted by clicking the bin icon on the left, before and after selecting the outputs concerned.

	Add/Delete	groupe	Num	Name	Family	Туре
Ī	Add all		1	Kitchen	$\bigcirc$	
2	Hall	$\bigcirc$	5	Toilet	$\bigcirc$	
3	Living	$\bigcirc$	6	Russ bedroom	$\bigcirc$	
4	Bathroom	$\bigcirc$	7	Bryan bedroom	$\bigcirc$	
			8	Kimberley bedroom	$\bigcirc$	
			9	Garage	$\bigcirc$	
	Save	Return	10	Basement	$\bigcirc$	
	Ouve	netum				

In the case of a **«Scenario**» group, you must define the status of the output.Click on the output to change its status from active to inactive.

#### Yellow = ON Grey = OFF

Outputs that are not included in the group are listed in the column on the right. For «**dimmer**» outputs, you can define the dimming level of the bulk between 0–100%. Note that some LED brands do not vary the brightness in the same way! For more accurate information, please contact your lighting supplier.

	Add/Delet	te groupe	Num	Name	Family	Туре
Ì	Add all		2	Hall	$\bigcirc$	<b>x</b>
1	Kitchen		4	Bathroom	$\bigcirc$	<b>X</b>
3	Living		5	Toilet	$\bigcirc$	<b>x</b>
13	Strip led		6	Russ bedroom	$\bigcirc$	
17	Living dimmer	(	7	Bryan bedroom	$\bigcirc$	~
18	Kitchen dimmer	Q A	8	Kimberley bedroom	$\bigcirc$	
	Save	Return	9	Garage	$\bigcirc$	<b>x</b>
	oure		• 10	D .	$\bigcirc$	



## 4.10. CONFIGURING AREAS

Configuring areas



The DME-LAN-002 can be used to create up to **60** areas.

The areas are used to organise the outputs for the end user. For example, you can create a «Ground floor» area, an «Upstairs» area or an «Outdoor» area, etc.

Then select the outputs that must be part of the group.

An output can be added by clicking on the list on the right. It can be deleted by clicking the bin icon on the left, before and after selecting the outputs concerned.



Click on the «Plus» icon to create one or more areas. Only the outputs and groups contained in the areas can be viewed in Home On Web.

## 4.11. CONFIGURING TEMPERATURE SENSORS

Click on the icon



The DME-LAN-002 accepts up to 32 sensors. By default, the sensors are «Unassigned».

1	Living		/	
2	Add		,	Ä
				0
I.		Return		

Sensor	1 <u>Captor</u> 1	
Туре	Temperature	
sub-type	Digital Probe	
Output	23 Ground floor	
Mode	Auto Heating	
	Copy on the other sensors	
	Save Return	n

#### Select a type > subtype > output to be used > mode

The temperature sensor must be connected to a relay (via the configuration menu for relay outputs).

Automatic mode uses the settings programmed by time slots (maximum of six events per day). The settings span **0-50°C** in increments of 0.5°C.

24

«Override» mode sets the temperature to 5°C.d





## 4.12. SAVING THE CONFIGURATION IN THE DME-LAN

#### Press on the icon



#### to save your configuration !

A progress bar is displayed and the configuration is saved after a few seconds.

DOMESTIA Writing the con	nfiguration
<b>10 %</b> Writing outputs	
IP Adress DME-LAN : 192.168.1.192	

## 4.13. X.X BUS DMX 512

The DME-LAN-002 has a DMX 512 output. This is a communication protocol used by some manufacturers of lighting equipment. The signal emitted by the DMX 512 bus comprises the status of the 192 outputs possible with a DME-LAN-002 (lighting value between 0 and 255).

To use a device that operates using the DMX 512 protocol, you need to add a module with an equivalent function in **the installation composition** (see 4.6 Installation composition). If your device is a dimmer, then select the dimmer module (e.g. DML-004-002). The address of the DMX 512 device (see your equipment's installation manual) must correspond to the address of the first module output (address 37 in the following example).





#### 5.1. PROGRAMMING OUTPUTS

In order to assign one or more buttons to an output, click on the output to be programmed. The programming window will appear. Next, click on the orange button to activate the programming for this output. The output is activated and you simply need to press the button(s) to assign it/them to this output.

	2				Re	elay cor	nfigurat	tion		
		Outp	out name	e: <mark>Ha</mark> l	I					
<b>&gt;</b>	emote							$\bigcirc$		
S Ir	npulse									
Т	imer M	ode O	N/OFF							
G										\$
a	z	е	r	ť	у	u ,	i '	0	p	۲
q	s	d	f	g	h	j	k	1	m	0
0	w	x	с	v	b	n		I	?	Ó
?123		•						©		7123

Press the button again to finish.

## **5.2. PROGRAMMING GROUPS**

In order to assign one or more buttons to a group, click on the icon



Then click on the group to be programmed, then on the orange «Click here to program the PBs» button. The outputs assigned to this group are activated and you simply need to press the button(s) to assign it/them to this group.





## 6. USER INTERFACE (LOCAL)

The user interface can be accessed from a web browser from any platform. For example, a Windows PC, an Android smartphone, an iOS tablet, etc.

However, some browsers are not fully compatible.

In order to access the DME-LAN-002 web interface, you simply need to enter the IP address of the latter in your web browser (by default: http://192.168.1.210).

The web interface is divided into four menus: «Home», «Temperature», «Events» and



#### «Parameters».

Simply click on a menu to select it.

## 6.1. «HOME» MENU

The «Home» menu contains the areas.

You can select the area to display from the list on the left. The selected area appears in light grey.

The list on the right contains the buttons for the selected area.

The colour of the button indicates whether the output is active or inactive.

#### Yellow = active Grey = inactive

	DOMESTIA DI	IE-LAN 2	
НОМЕ	SENSORS	EVENTS	PARAMETERS
Zones			
Ground floor	Dimmer Living Room	Wall lights Living Room	•
Floor	Dimmer	Wall lights	
Exterior	SAM	SAM	
	Hallway wall lights		Kitchen
	llot central	u	ving room
	Strip LED RGB	Sv	veep RGB

## 6.2. «TEMPERATURE» MENU

The «Temperature» menu is used to manage the temperature sensors.

The selected sensor appears in a light colour. The colour of the button depends on the status:

Grey = relay inactive

Red = relay active and sensor configured in hot «Heating» mode

Blue = relay active and sensor configured in cold **«Cooling**» mode

The current temperature of the sensor is displayed on the button. If the value is **255**°: the sensor is absent or its address has not been configured correctly. The first frame is used to configure the sensor's operating mode:

- «Set point» indicates the current setting
- «Set derogated» is used to modify the setting when in the «Derogation» and «Derogation continues» modes
- The **«Save**» button is used to save the configuration.

The second frame is used to configure the temperature settings for events.

Select the day to be configured in **«Day**», then configure the events in chronological order. Unused events can be configured to 00:00. Next, press the **«Save**» button to save the day configured.

HOME	SENSORS	EVENTS	PARAMETERS
Sensors		Bathroom	
Heating Bathroom	Operating mode:		
	Auto  Manual Set LUX: 400		
	Set Hysteresis: 10		
	302		
	Day: Monday 🔻		
	Hour Temperatu	re	
	Event 1: 00:00 2,5		
	Event 2: 08:36 27		
	Event 3: 19:36 18		
	Event 4: 20:3€ 18		
	Event 5: 00:00 10		
	Save		

## 6.3. «EVENTS» MENU

This menu is used to configure events. Twenty events are available. The visible event is the one for which the button is light grey.





The first frame is used to configure the «Event type», the «event days» and the time at which the event occurs (the «Event time»). The «Save» button is used to save the configuration.

#### There are three possible event types :

#### « Standard »

An event that takes place at a set time.



#### « Sunrise »

The event takes place at sunrise. An offset of between -127 minutes and +128 minutes from sunrise can be defined.

Event type : Sunrise V
Day of event : Monday 🗹 Tuesday 🗹 Wednesday 🗹 Thursday 🗹 Friday 🗹 Saturday 🔲 Sunday 🔲
Time of event : 16:51 Offset(minutes): 10
Save

#### « Sunset »

The event takes place at sunset. An offset of between -127 minutes and +128 minutes from sunset can be defined.

Event type : Sunset 🗸				
Day of event : Monday 🗹 Tu	uesday 🗹 Wednesday 🗹	Thursday 🗆 Friday	🗹 Saturday 🗆	Sunday 🗆
Time of event : 16:51 Of	fset(minutes): <mark>-126</mark>	l		
Save				

The event takes place at sunset. An offset of between -127 minutes and +128 minutes from sunset can be defined.

Actions :		
Output	Configuration	
wc	OUnused OFF ON Save	
WC rez	OUnused OFF ON Save	
Output 3	OUnused OFF ON Save	
Output 4	OUnused OFF ON Save	
Output 5	OUnused OFF ON Save	
Output 6	OUnused OFF ON Save	
Output 7	OUnused OFF ON Save	
Output 8	OUnused OFF ON Save	

In this example, outputs 1 to 3 are lit and output 4 is off at the time of the event. The other outputs are configured as "Unused": no action on these outputs.



### 6.4. «PARAMETERS» MENU

The first frame – «IP configuration» – (figure 34) is used to configure the parameters of the DME-LAN-002 network. A restart is required when these parameters are changed (the «**Save and Restart**» button saves the parameters and restarts the DME-LAN-002). The default IP address is 192.168.1.210.

In order to restore this default IP address (if the address is unknown), simply press the reset button on the card five times.

	Configuration IP					
IP Adress: 192	168	1	210			
NetMask: 255	255	255	0			
Gateway: 192	168	1	1			
UDP PORT: 5200	0					
UDP STATUS PORT: 55001						
HTTP PORT: 80						
DHCP: 🗹						
Server Status: Connected to: 37.187.183.73. Port: 52004 23 4						
MA(00-04-a3-82-	MA(00-04-a3-82-79-11					
Save & Restart						

The second frame (figure below) is used to configure the time, date and day of the DME-LAN-002 (this is important for events and temperature sensors).

Time & Date configuration:	
Date : 14-09-2020 📋 Time : 14:26 💿 Weekday(1-7) : 1	

The third frame (figure below) is used to define the location (by default, Brussels) and whether it is summer or winter time (manual change via the **«Summer time**» box). The calculation of sunrise and sunset times is based on this information.

	Localisation:
Latitude: 50 ,	852
Longitude: 4	, 350
Time Zone: 1	Summer time: 🔽
Sunrise Time: 07:18 Sunset Time: 19:58	
Save	

## 7. USER INTERFACE: HOME ON WEB



Home on Web offers remote management that lets you manage your installation at any time, from anywhere in the world, via your Smartphone, tablet or PC.

Go to https://my.domestia.com to access Home On Web.

1. When you reach the «Log in» page, click on «Create an account»

*** * 2 0		and provided size	4	5.5.8
e e C A Norstautet   aca	demy domestia.com/index.php?lang=1r			e 🌢 E
	Home On Web Langues -		Assistance	-
		DOMARCTIA		
		DOMESTIA		
		74		
		$h( \cdot)$		
		in the		
		HOME ON WEB		
		Control your home in the most simple way !		
	1 bureau	ud		
		Connection		
		No account yet ? Sign up. Forpot your password ?		
		in Statute 16 all Like 202 Share		
			and the second second second	_



2. When you reach the «Log in» page, click on «Create an account»

Name     Phone number       First Name     Mac address of Dme-Lan       First Name     Xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx	Phone number Mac address of Dme-Lan Mac address of Dme-Lan Cogin : Login Login Email : Dureaud Password : Confirm Password :	Phone number Mac address of Dme-Lan DOCOC-OCCOCCOCC Login Login Email : Dureaud Password : Confirm Password :	Phone number  Mac address of Dme-Lan  DoctorSoccoccoccocc  Login :  Login  Email :  Dureaud  Password :  Confirm Password :  Confirm Password :	Name     Phone number       First Name :     Mac address of Dme-Lan       First Name     xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx	Name     Phone number       First Name :     Mac address of Dme-Lan       First Name     DXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX	Name     Phone number       First Name     Mac address of Dme-Lan       First Name     XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX	Name     Phone number       First Name :     Mac address of Dme-Lan       First Name     xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx	Name     Phone number       First Name     Mac address of Dme-Lan       First Name     xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx	Name     Phone number       First Name :     Mac address of Dme-Lan       First Name     xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx	Name     Phone number       First Name :     Mac address of Ome-Lan       First Name     xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx	Name     Phone number       First Name     Mac address of Dme-Lan       First Name     3003000000000000000000000000000000000	
First Name :     Mac address of Dme-Lan       First Name     XX-XX-XX-XX-XX       Country :     Login :       Country :     Login       Country :     Login       Street :     Email :       Street :     bureaud       Town :     Password :       Town :     Confirm Password :	Mac address of Dme-Lan bothering of the state of the st	Mac address of Dme-Lan        D0030040040000000       Login :       Login       Email :       bureaud       Password :       Confirm Password :	Mac address of Dme-Lan  Doctor-SocraceCoccessor  Login :  Login  Email :  Dureaud  Password :  Confirm Password :  Confirm Password :	First Name :     Mac address of Dme-Lan       First Name     DC:000000000000000000000000000000000000	First Name :     Mac address of Dme-Lan       First Name     xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx	First Name :     Mac address of Dme-Lan       First Name     Doc/DOC/DOC/DOC/DOC/DOC/DOC/DOC/DOC/DOC/DOC	First Name :     Mac address of Dme-Lan       First Name     XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX	First Name :     Mac address of Dme-Lan       First Name     xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx	First Name :     Mac address of Dme-Lan       First Name     xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx	First Name :     Mac address of Dme-Lan       First Name     xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx	First Name : Mac address of Dme-Lan First Name : 200000000000000000000000000000000000	Name Phone number
First Name     XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX	Login : Login : Login Email : bureaud Password :  Confirm Password :	Login : Login : Login : Login : Dureaud Password : Confirm Password :	DC-CCC-CCC-CCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCC	First Name     DOCOG/DOCOGCOCOCCOCCOCCOCCOCCOCCOCCOCCOCCOCCOCC	First Name     DC3000-000-000-000-000-000       Country :     Login :       Country :     Login       Street :     Email :       Street :     bureaud       Town :     Password :	First Name     DOCOGROUPDOCOCROCT       Country :     Login :       Country     Login       Street :     Email :       Street :     bureaud       Tom :     Password :	First Name     XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX	First Name     xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx	First Name     305305305305305305305       Country :     Login :       Country     Login	First Name     3000000000000000000000000000000000000	First Name     XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX	
Country :     Login :       Country     Login       Street :     Email :       Street     bureaud       Town :     Password ;       Town :     Confirm Password ;	Login : Login Email : bureaud Password : Confirm Password :	Login : Login Email : bureaud Password : Confirm Password :	Login : Login Login Email : bureaud Password : Confirm Password : Confirm Password :	Country :     Login :       Country     Login       Street:     Email :       Street     bureaud       Town :     Password :       Town :	Country:     Login :       Country     Login       Street:     Email :       Street     bureaud       Town :     Password :       Town	Country:     Login :       Country     Login       Street:     Email :       Street     bureaud       Tom :     Password :	Country:     Login:       Country     Login       Street:     Email:       Street     bureaud       Town:     Password:	Country : Login : Country Login Street : Email :	Country : Login : Country Login Login	Country : Login :	Country : Login :	First Name : Mac address of Dme-Lan
Country Login Street: Street Town: Town Confirm Password: Confirm Password:	Login Email : bureaud Password : Confirm Password :	Login Email : bureaud Password : Confirm Password :	Login Email : bureaud Password : Confirm Password : Confirm Password	Country     Login       Street:     Email :       Street     bureaud       Town :     Password :       Town :     •••••••	Country     Login       Street:     Email :       Street     bureaud       Town :     Password :       Town	Country     Login       Street:     Email :       Street     bureaud       Town :     Password :	Country Login  Street:  Street  Town:  Country  Login  Login  Email:  bureaud  Password:	Country Login Street: Email:	Country	Country		First Name :     Mac address of Dme-Lan       First Name     >xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx
Street: Email : Street bureaud Town : Password : Town Confirm Password :	Email : bureaud Password :  Confirm Password :	Email : bureaud Password : Confirm Password :	Email : bureaud Password :  Confirm Password : Confirm Password	Street:     Email:       Street     bureaud       Town:     Password:       Town:     ••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••	Street: Email : bureaud Town : Password : Town	Street :     Email :       Street     bureaud       Town :     Password :	Street : Email : bureaud Town : Password :	Street : Email :		Landard Control Contro	Country Login	First Name :     Mac address of Dme-Lan       First Name     300300:00:300:300:300       Country :     Login :
Street bureaud Town : Password : Town Confirm Password :	Dureaud Password :  Confirm Password :	Password :	Dureaud Password : Confirm Password : Confirm Password	Street     bureaud       Town :     Password :       Town	Street     bureaud       Town :     Password :       Town :	Street bureaud Town : Password :	Street bureaud Town : Password :		Street : Email :	Gfraat - Emsil -		First Name :     Mac address of Dme-Lan       First Name     b0050000000000000000000000000000000000
Town : Password :	Password :	Password :  Confirm Password :	Password : Confirm Password :	Town : Password :	Town : Password :	Town : Password :	Town : Password :	Street bureaud	Streat	Elitari .	Street : Email :	First Name :     Mac address of Dme-Lan       First Name     SOCROCCOCCOCCOC       Country :     Login :       Country     Login       Street :     Email :
Town Confirm Password :	Confirm Password :	Confirm Password :	Confirm Password :	Town	Town					Street bureaud	Street : Email : Street bureaud	First Name :     Mac address of Dme-Lan       First Name     S0CSSCCCCSCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCC
Confirm Password :	Confirm Password :	Confirm Password :	Confirm Password : Confirm Password			Town	Town	Town : Password :	Town : Password :	Street     bursaud       Town :     Password :	Street : Email	First Name :     Mac address of Dme-Lan       First Name     D0CD0C/D0C/D0C/D0C/D0C       Country :     Login :       Country :     Login       Street :     Email :       Street     bureaud       Town :     Password :
			Confirm Password	Confirm Password :	Confirm Password :			Town : Password : Town	Town : Password :	Street     bursaud       Town :     Password :       Town	Street: Street Town:	First Name :     Mac address of Dme-Lan       First Name     D000000000000       Country :     Login :       Country :     Login :       Country :     Email :       Street :     Email :       Street :     bureaud       Town :     Password :       Town :
Confirm Password	Confirm Password	Confirm Password		Confirm Password		Confirm Password :	Confirm Password :	Town : Password : Town Confirm Password :	Town : Password : Confirm Password :	Street     bureaud       Town :     Password :       Town     Confirm Password :	Street:     Email:       Street     bureaud       Town:     Password:       Town        Confirm Password:	First Name :     Mac address of Dme-Lan       First Name     D000000000000       Country :     Login :       Country :     Login       Street :     Email :       Street     bureaud       Town :     Password :       Town :     Confirm Password :
					Confirm Password	Confirm Password : Confirm Password	Confirm Password : Confirm Password	Town : Password : Town Town Confirm Password : Confirm Password : Confirm Password :	Town : Password : Town Confirm Password : Confirm Password : Confirm Password :	Street burnaud Town : Password : Town Confirm Password : Confirm Password : Confirm Password :	Street:     Email:       Street     bureaud       Town:     Password:       Town        Confirm Password:     Confirm Password	First Name :     Mac address of Dme-Lan       First Name     D0C00C0C0C0CCOC       Country :     Login :       Country :     Login       Street :     Email :       Street :     bureaud       Town :     Password :       Town :     Confirm Password :
Sign up Cancel					Confirm Password	Confirm Password : Confirm Password	Confirm Password : Confirm Password	Town : Password : Town Confirm Password : Confirm Password : Confirm Password	Town : Town Town Confirm Password : Confirm Password	Street burnaud Town : Password : Town Confirm Password : Confirm Passw	Street: Street  Town: Town  Town  Confirm Password: Confirm Password	First Name :     Mac address of Dme-Lan       First Name     DCCDCCCCCCCCCCCC       Country :     Login :       Country :     Login       Street :     Email :       Street :     bureaud       Town :     Password :       Town :     Confirm Password :
	Sign up Cancel	Sign up Cancel	Sign up Cancel	Sign up Cancel	Confirm Password Sign up Cancel	Confirm Password : Confirm Password Sign up Cancel	Confirm Password : Confirm Password Sign up Cancel	Town : Password : Town Confirm Password : Confirm Password : Confirm Password	Town : Town Town Town Sign up Cancel	Street bureaud Town : Town Town Confirm Password : Confirm Password Sign up Cancel	Street: Street: Town: Town: Town: Town: Confirm Password: Confirm Password: Confirm Password:	First Name :     Mac address of Dme-Lan       First Name     D0C0000000000       Country :     Login :       Country :     Login :       Country :     Email :       Street :     bureaud       Town :     Password :       Town :     confirm Password :       Confirm Password :     Confirm Password :
	Sign up Cancel	Sign up Cancel	Sign up Cancel	Sign up Cancel	Confirm Password Sign up Cancel	Confirm Password : Confirm Password Sign up Cancel	Confirm Password : Confirm Password	Town : Password : Town Town Confirm Password : Confirm Password : Confirm Password Sign up Caincel	Town : Town Town Sign up Cancel Confirm Password : Confirm Password Cancel	Street  Town: Town  Street  Street  Confirm Password: Confirm Password  Sign up Cancel  Cancel	Street: Street: Town: Town Town Sign up Cancel	First Name     Mac address of Dme-Lan       First Name     DOUNTY:       Country     Login       Country     Login       Street:     Email :       Street     Email :       Street     Dursaud       Town:     Password :       Town        Confirm Password        Confirm Password
Sign up Cancel					Confirm Password	Confirm Password : Confirm Password	Confirm Password : Confirm Password	Town : Password : Town Confirm Password : Confirm Password :	Town :     Password :       Town     Confirm Password :	Street     bureaud       Town :     Password :       Town     Confirm Password :	Street: Street Street Town: Town Confirm Password: Confirm Password:	First Name :     Mac address of Dme-Lan       First Name     XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX
Sign up Cancer	Diama um	Barren Canada	Convert	Simum Descel	Confirm Password	Confirm Password : Confirm Password	Confirm Password : Confirm Password	Town : Password : Town Confirm Password : Confirm Password : Confirm Password	Town : Town : Town Confirm Password : Confirm Password : Confirm Password :	Street burnaud Town: Town Town Confirm Password: Confirm Password Confirm Password Confirm Password Confirm Password	Street: Street: Street: Town: Town: Town Confirm Password: Confirm Password: Confirm Password:	First Name     Mac address of Dme-Lan       First Name     bx3xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx
	Sign up Cancel	Sign up Cancel	Sign up Cancel	Sign up Cancel	Confirm Password Sign up Cancel	Confirm Password : Confirm Password Sign up Cancel	Confirm Password : Confirm Password Sign up Cancel	Town : Password : Town Confirm Password : Confirm Password : Confirm Password Confirm Password Password	Town :     Password :       Town     Confirm Password :       Confirm Password     Confirm Password :	Street     bureaud       Town :     Password :       Town     Confirm Password :       Confirm Password     Confirm Password :	Street:     Email:       Street     bureaud       Town:     Password:       Town        Confirm Password:     Confirm Password       Sign up     Canced	First Name     Mac address of Dme-Lan       First Name     DXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX
	Sign up Cancel	Sign up Cancel	Sign up Cancel	Sign up Cancel	Confirm Password Sign up Cancel	Confirm Password : Confirm Password Sign up Cancel	Confirm Password : Confirm Password Sign up Cancel	Town : Password : Town Confirm Password : Confirm Password : Confirm Password	Town :     Password :       Town     Confirm Password :       Confirm Password     Confirm Password :	Street     burnaud       Town :     Password :       Town     ••••••       Confirm Password :     Confirm Password :       Sign up     Cancel	Street     Email :       Street     bureaud       Town :     Password :       Town     confirm Password :       Confirm Password     Confirm Password :	First Name     Mac address of Dme-Lan       First Name     xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx
Sign up Cancel	Commit Password	Collimn Password		Contine Password	Confirm Descenard	Confirm Password :	Confirm Password :	Town : Password : Town Town Confirm Password : Confirm Password : Confirm Password :	Town : Password :	Street bureaud Town: Town: Town: Town: Confirm Password: Confirm P	Street : Email	First Name :     Mac address of Dme-Lan       First Name     XX-XXX-XX-XX-XX-XX-XX-XX-XX-XX-XX-XX-XX
Confirm Password :	Confirm Password :	Confirm Password :	Confirm Password :			Town	Town	Town : Password :	Town : Password :	Street     bureaud       Town :     Password :	Street : Email	First Name :     Mac address of Dme-Lan       First Name     b000000000000000000000000000000000000
Confirm Password :	Confirm Password :	Confirm Password :	Confirm Password : Confirm Password			Town	Town			Street bureaud	Street : Email : bureaud	First Name :     Mac address of Dme-Lan       First Name     DXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX
Town Confirm Password :	Confirm Password :	Confirm Password :	Confirm Password :	Town	Town					Street bureaud	Street : Email : Street bureaud	First Name :     Mac address of Dme-Lan       First Name     D0CDOC/D0C/D0C/D0C/D0C/D0C/D0C/D0C/D0C/D0C/D0
Town Confirm Password :	Confirm Password :	Confirm Password :	Confirm Password :	Town	Town					Street bureaud	Street : Email : burosud	First Name :     Mac address of Dme-Lan       First Name     xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx
Country     Login       Street:     Email:       Street     bureaud       Town:     Password:       Town        Confirm Password:	Login Email : bureaud Password : Confirm Password :	Login Email : bureaud Password : Confirm Password :	Login Email : bureaud Password : Confirm Password : Confirm Password	Country     Login       Street:     Email :       Street     bureaud       Town :     Password :       Town	Country     Login       Street:     Email :       Street     bureaud       Town :     Password :       Town	Country     Login       Street:     Email:       Street     bureaud       Town:     Password:	Country     Login       Street:     Email:       Street     bureaud       Town:     Password:	Country Login Street: Email:	Country	Country		First Name : Mac address of Dme-Lan First Name : 00000000000000000000000000000000000
Country :     Login :       Country     Login       Street :     Email :       Street :     bureaud       Town :     Password :       Town :     Confirm Password :	Login : Login Email : bureaud Password : Confirm Password :	Login : Login Email : bureaud Password : Confirm Password :	Login : Login Login Login Email : bureaud Password : Confirm Password : Confirm Password	Country:     Login :       Country     Login       Street:     Email :       Street     bureaud       Town :     Password :       Town :	Country:     Login:       Country     Login       Street:     Email:       Street     bureaud       Town:     Password:       Town	Country:     Login :       Country     Login       Street:     Email :       Street     bureaud       Town ;     Password :	Country:     Login :       Country     Login       Street :     Email :       Street     burnaud       Town :     Password :	Country : Login : Country Login Street : Email :	Country : Login : Country Login	Country : Login :	Country : Login :	First Name : Mac address of Dme-Lan
Country: Country: Country Country Street: Street Town: Town: Town: Confirm Password:	Login : Login : Login : bureaud Password : Confirm Password :	Login : Login : Login : Email : bureaud Password :  Confirm Password :	Login : Login : Login Email : bureaud Password : Confirm Password : Confirm Password :	Country:     Login:       Country     Login       Street:     Email:       Street     bureaud       Town:     Password:       Town:	Country: Country: Country: Country: Street: Street: Town: Town: Town: Town: Town: Town: Country: Countr	Country :     Login :       Country     Login       Street :     Email :       Street     bureaud       Town :     Password :	Country:     Login :       Country     Login       Street:     Email :       Street     bureaud       Town :     Password :	Country: Country: Country Login Street: Email:	Country Login Login	Country: Country: Login:	Country :	
First Name     D0307-000-000-000       Country :     Login :       Country     Login       Street :     Email :       Street :     bureaud       Town :     Password :       Town :     Confirm Password :	Login : Login : Login Commentation Commentat	Image: Source of the second	DC:000000000000000000000000000000000000	First Name     XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX	First Name     D03005005005005005       Country :     Login :       Country :     Login       Street :     Email :       Street :     bureaud       Town :     Password :       Town :	First Name     XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX	First Name     XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX	First Name     2000000000000000000000000000000000000	First Name     JOCJOCJOC/JOCJOCJOCJOCJOCJOCJOCJOCJOC       Country :     Login :       Country     Login :	First Name         xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx	First Name         30030000030003000           Country :         Login :	
First Name :     Mac address of Dme-Lan       First Name     xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx	Mac address of Dme-Lan       XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX	Mac address of Dme-Lan       D0000000000000       Login :       Login       Email :       bureaud       Password :       Confirm Password :	Mac address of Dme-Lan  Decido: Joccoccoccioc  Login :  Login  Email :  Dereaud  Password :  Confirm Password :  Confirm Password :	First Name :     Mac address of Dme-Lan       First Name     DXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX	First Name :     Mac address of Dme-Lan       First Name     DCX-DCX-DCX-DCX-DCX-DCX-DCX-DCX-DCX-DCX-	First Name :     Mac address of Dme-Lan       First Name     DxxXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX	First Name :     Mac address of Dme-Lan       First Name     xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx	First Name :     Mac address of Dme-Lan       First Name     3003000000000000000000000000000000000	First Name :     Mac address of Dme-Lan       First Name     3003000000000000000000000000000000000	First Name :     Mac address of Dme-Lan       First Name     xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx	First Name :     Mac address of Dme-Lan       First Name     xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx	Name Phone number

3. You can then manage your different **areas** via this intuitive platform.

HOLE DOMESTIA Home Areas Sensors Even	nts Setlings	bureau	d+ en+
Choose your area			
Zone 1			
Sorties	Sec. 2	al 💩 Voiets	
entree	CIT	Chambres darr	Θ
Salon salon	Of	Chambres warr	0
Chambere and	•		0
Cursone C	•	salon darr	Q
Chambin and and	•	salon uarr	Q
y sale in bar	<b>•</b>	chambre enfant darr	Θ
buanderie	Of	chambre enfant uarr	0
garage garage	OF		
V we	Of	porte garage darr	e

4. The **Temperature** tab allows you to automatically adjust your heating remotely and/or to view your sensors.



5. In the **Events** tab, you can determine the actions that will automatically be executed, either at a certain time or at sunrise/sunset.

Q	Create a new event 15 events of 20 available		>	*	Event 1 Sunrise MTIMITIFISIS	↑ ↓ >	
()	off Disabled MTTWITIFISIS	<b>† ↓</b>	>	0	test 1 16:50 Standard WT/WT/FISIS	↑ ↓ >	
()	test2 16:51 Standard WT/WT/F/S/S	<b>† ↓</b>	>	0	test3 16:51 Standard M/T/W/T/F/S/S	↑ ↓ >	



Problems encountered	Possible causes	Solutions
		Restart the DME-LAN-002 if it is connected to a Wi-Fi router. The DME-LAN-002 automatically adapts its IP address to the network it is connected to when it is started.
	Network configuration	Reset the IP parameters of the DME-LAN-002 by pressing the reset button 5 times
I can't connect the Home Manager application to my DME-LAN-002		Scan the IP address of the DME-LAN-002 via the "Parameters" menu before trying to connect.
		The IP addresses of the DME-LAN and the device (tablet, PC, etc.) cannot be identical. By default, the IP address of the DME-LAN ends in 210.
	The application (tablet, smartphone or PC) is on a different network to the DME-LAN-002	Connect the device or DME-LAN-002 to the correct network.
	The identification module bus is not connected properly	The identification module bus must be connected to the DME-LAN and not to a DMC-012-002 card.
I am unable to program a pushbutton. The bulb lights in programming mode, but the button doesn't react	Too many addresses are already programmed on the identification module bus	You can program a maxi- mum of 70 different func- tions per bus line. If the maximum threshold is reached, you need to split the bus. (Four bus lines are available on the DME- LAN-002)
	Short circuit on the bus line (The line's red LED is lit)	Find the short circuit

Problems encountered	Possible causes	Solutions
	Output cards are not addressed	Address your slave cards
I am unable to program a pushbutton. The bulb is not lit in programming mode	Bulb is not connected properly or is defective.	Check that the LED that is assigned to the output is lit when in programming mode. If it is, check the connection of the bulb
I've programmed the list of my slave cards correctly. I am trying to activate an output, but it does not light.	Bus RS485 for the slave cards is not connected or is in the wrong place	The slave cards must be connected to the DME-LAN via the "RS485 slaves" port next to the RJ45 connector.

## 9. WARRANTIES

## Warranty conditions

The duration of your product's basic warranty is 2 years, starting from the date your order is received.

#### Please keep your receipt with the serial number, in case of any issues. This is the only document that can serve as a warranty.

The warranty does not apply in the following cases:

- Damage caused by inappropriate use, improper use, poor maintenance or failure to comply with the instructions issued by the manufacturer in the user manual.
- Repair attempts made by the customer or by an unauthorised third party.
- Damage caused by accident, force majeure or other causes for which Domestia cannot be held liable.
- A fault that does not impair the proper functioning or correct use of the equipment.







## DUMESTIA

rue Hector Denis 114 4420 Montegnée Belgium Tel +32 4 372 07 16 Fax +32 4 372 07 19 info@domestia.be

















